
 

Meeting contact Matthew Pawlyszyn on 01257 515034 or email matthew.pawlyszyn@chorley.gov.uk 

 
 

Planning Committee 
Tuesday, 10th October 2023, 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley and YouTube   
Agenda 
   
Apologies 

  
1 Declarations of Any Interests 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 
 

 

 
2 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 12 September 2023 of Planning 

Committee   
 

(Pages 3 - 4) 

 
3 Planning applications to be determined 
 

 

 The Head of Planning and Enforcement has submitted five planning 
applications to be determined (enclosed). 
  
Plans to be considered will be displayed at the meeting or may be viewed in 
advance by following the links to the current planning applications on our 
website.   
 

 

 
 a 20/01378/FULMAJ - Formerly Mormon Church, Water Street, 

Chorley 
 

(To Follow) 

 
 b 23/00454/FUL - Land Between 20 And Mereside, Oakmere 

Avenue, Withnell 
 

(To Follow) 

 
 c 23/00564/FUL - Land Opposite Hampton Grove, Wigan Road, 

Clayton-Le-Woods 
 

(To Follow) 

 
 d 23/00557/FULMAJ - Golden Acres Ltd, Plocks Farm, 

Liverpool Road, Bretherton 
 

(To Follow) 

 
 e 22/00330/S106A - The Strawberry Fields Digital Hub, Euxton 

Lane, Chorley, PR7 1PS 
 

(To Follow) 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/ChorleyCouncil
https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


4 Chorley Borough Council Footpath 71 Public Path Diversion Order 
2023 

 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

 To receive and consider the report of the Director of Governance.  
 

 
 
5 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair   
 

 

 
Chris Sinnott  
Chief Executive 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Planning Committee Councillor June Molyneaux 
(Chair), Councillor Alex Hilton (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Sarah Ainsworth, Karen Derbyshire, 
Gordon France, Danny Gee, Samir Khan, Alistair Morwood, Debra Platt, Chris Snow, 
Craige Southern, Neville Whitham and Alan Whittaker.  
 
If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here and scroll to page 119 
 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/g8112/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-Jan-2020%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1


Planning Committee Tuesday, 12 September 2023 

 
 
 
Minutes of Planning Committee 
 
Meeting date Tuesday, 12 September 2023 
 
Committee  
Members present: 

Councillor June Molyneaux (Chair), Councillor Alex Hilton 
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Sarah Ainsworth, 
Karen Derbyshire, Gordon France, Danny Gee, 
Samir Khan, Alistair Morwood, Chris Snow, 
Craige Southern and Neville Whitham 

  
  
Officers: Adele Hayes (Head of Planning and Enforcement), Iain 

Crossland (Principal Planning Officer), Stefanie 
Malcolmson (Senior Solicitor) and Matthew Pawlyszyn 
(Democratic and Member Services Officer) 

  
Apologies: Councillor Alan Whittaker  
 
A video recording of the public session of this meeting is available to view on YouTube 
 

16 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
No interests were declared. 
 

17 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 15 August 2023 of Planning Committee 
 
Resolved: That the minutes be approved as a correct record.  
 

18 Planning applications to be determined 
 
The Head of Planning and Enforcement submitted three planning applications to be 
determined.  
  
Plans considered were displayed at the meeting and can be viewed on our website 
 

19 20/01378/FULMAJ - Formerly Mormon Church, Water Street, Chorley 
 
After careful consideration, it was proposed by the Chair, Councillor June Molyneaux, 
seconded by Vice Chair Councillor Alex Hilton, and resolved unanimously that the 
application would be deferred to allow Members the opportunity to visit the site.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 2

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TggEWNX4ISQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TggEWNX4ISQ
https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


Planning Committee Tuesday, 12 September 2023 

20 23/00616/PIP - Whitegates, 75 Gorsey Lane, Mawdesley 
 
Public Speakers: Councillor Alan Platt (Ward Councillor), and Martin Boardman 
(Agent)  
After careful consideration, it was proposed by Councillor Craige Southern, seconded 
by Councillor Gordon France to defer the application to allow Members to visit the site, 
this amendment was lost (2 for, 9 against).  
  
It was then proposed by Councillor Alex Hilton, seconded by Councillor Sarah 
Ainsworth and was resolved unanimously that permission in principle be refused 
for the following reason:  
  
The proposed development would be inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt and, therefore, harmful by definition. There would also be other harm as a 
result of sprawl and encroachment. It is not considered that there are very 
special circumstances to overcome the definitional harm to the Green Belt and 
additional harm caused through sprawl and encroachment. The proposal is, 
therefore, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

21 23/00445/FUL - Land 150M West Of Oakfields and 197 Runshaw Lane, Euxton 
 
After careful consideration, it was proposed by Councillor Danny Gee, seconded by 
Councillor Alistair Morwood and resolved unanimously that planning permission 
be refused for the following reason:  
  
The proposed development would be inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt and, therefore, harmful by definition. There would also be other harm to the 
Green Belt through encroachment into the countryside. It is not considered that 
there are very special circumstances to overcome the definitional harm to the 
Green Belt and additional harm from encroachment of the countryside. The 
proposal is, therefore, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 2



  
 

 
Proposed Chorley Borough Council (Part of Footpath 71 Heath 
Charnock) Public Path Diversion Order 2023 
 
Is this report confidential? No 

 
Is this decision key? No 

 
Savings or expenditure amounting to 
greater than £100,000 

Significant impact on 2 or more council 
wards – No 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
 

1. To consider an application submitted on behalf of Gordons (Bolton) Limited for the 
diversion of part of Public Footpath No. 71 in Heath Charnock in order to facilitate the 
demolition of a farmhouse and outbuildings and erection of six detached houses and 
associated garages pursuant to planning permission reference 18/00060/FUL and 
permission 22/00363/FUL which relates to engineering works. 

 
Recommendations  
 
2. That the making of the proposed Chorley Borough Council (Part of Footpath 71 

Heath Charnock) Public Path Diversion Order 2023 pursuant to Section 257 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be approved in respect of lengths of Footpath 
Number 71 so as to facilitate development in accordance with the grant of planning 
permissions reference 18/00060/FUL and 22/00363/FUL 
 

3. That the Director of Governance is authorised to serve notice regarding the making 
of the order on prescribed persons and arrange for notice in the local press and on 
site. 

 

4. That the Director of Governance is authorised, in the event that no representations 
are received objecting to the order or in the event that any which are received are 
withdrawn, to confirm the order as unopposed and to serve notice regarding the 
confirmation of the order on prescribed persons and arrange for notice in the local 
press and on site. 

 
 
 
 
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director (Governance) Planning Committee 
 

Tuesday, 10 
October 2023 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 4



Reasons for recommendations 
 
5. Sections of Public Footpath No. 71 Heath Charnock affect a site at Hole House Farm 

off Chorley Road in the settlement area of Adlington. The parcel of land benefits from 
the grant of planning permission to demolish a farmhouse and outbuildings and erect 
six detached dwellings and associated garages. 

6. Full planning permission was granted for the development on 11 May 2018. 
7. The diversion when effected with works which are required by the diversion order at 

the cost of the applicant will make it the legal public right of way. 
8. The proposed order requires the provision of such works as may be notified to the 

applicant following any comment by the Public Rights of Way team at Lancashire 
County Council. 

9. Members are referred to the draft order map immediately following this report which 
shows a section of the existing legal footpath by a continuous bold black line between 
the points A-B-C-D-E. This is the route which it is proposed to divert i.e. it will cease 
to be a legal right of way. 

10. In order to facilitate the development it is proposed to divert the path onto a route 
between the points A-F-G-H-J-E shown by bold black dashes on the order map. 

 
Other options considered and rejected 
 

11.Not to recommend the making of the order. However there is no apparent reason 
not to make the order and a continuous public right of way will be preserved albeit by 
a diverted route which does not deviate substantially from the current legal footpath. 
 

 
Details of the proposal 
 

12. The length of the currently existing Footpaths No. 71 between the points A-B-C-D-E 
forming the subject of the application runs for a total distance of about 127 metres. 

13. The length of the proposed diverted route between the points A-F-G-H-J-E runs for 
a total distance of about 137 metres. 

14. The diversion comprises a slightly longer route so it is not materially less convenient 
for users.  

15. A small river Eller Brook crosses the site which is to be fully culverted and land raised 
up to the level of the existing public highway. Public Rights of Way at Lancashire 
County Council commented at the planning application stage that the pedestrian 
access should not run alongside a route shared by motor vehicles. 

16. Consent of the owner of the land affected by the newly diverted route is required. 
Both the existing legal route and the route of the proposed diversion are on land 
owned by the applicant. 

17. The cost of dealing with the application and statutory notices in the local press will be 
met by the applicant. 

 
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 
 
18. This applicant is required to make a contribution of £1,500 to the costs of making the 

order and will be required to meet the cost of placing public notice in the local press both 
following the making of the order and subsequently if it is confirmed by the Council as 
an unopposed order. When the order comes into effect after it is certified that its 
provisions have been complied with, legal responsibility for maintenance of the newly 
created section of public footpath will rest with Lancashire County Council. 

 
Comments of the Monitoring Officer 
 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 4



19.  An order made under Section 257 may provide for the creation of an alternative 
highway for the footpath to be diverted. The order may also authorise or require works 
and require any person named in the order to meet the costs of such works. 

 
20. A public notice describing the order must be advertised in the local press and the order 

placed on deposit for public inspection. This public notice and order map must also be 
placed at each end of the length of public footpath to be diverted. Owners of land 
affected by the order and various statutory consultees must be contacted and served 
with the order and notice and allowed the opportunity to make objections within 28 days 
from the making of the order. If no objections are made the order may then be confirmed 
as an unopposed order. After the order is confirmed i.e. made permanent it does not 
come into effect until Chorley Council certifies that the provisions of the order have been 
complied with in relation to any works required to bring the diverted route up to standard. 

 
Background documents  
 
E-mails from applicant and applicant’s agent including plan to be used as order map. 
 
Appendices  
 
 
Appendix A – proposed order map 
 
Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Alex Jackson (Legal Services 
Team Leader) 

alex.jackson@chorley.gov.uk 01257 
515166 

 

 
 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 12 September 2023 of Planning Committee
	4 Chorley Borough Council Footpath 71 Public Path Diversion Order 2023
	Proposed Chorley Borough Council (Part of Footpath 71 Heath Charnock) Public Path Diversion Order 2023
	Purpose of the Report
	Details of the proposal
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Background documents
	Appendices

	Order Map


